POLICE COMMITTEE Friday, 28 February 2014

Minutes of the meeting of the Police Committee held at Committee Rooms, 2nd Floor, West Wing, Guildhall on Friday, 28 February 2014 at 11.00 am

Present

Members:

Deputy Henry Pollard (Chairman)
Mark Boleat
Simon Duckworth
Alderman Alison Gowman
Brian Harris
Deputy Keith Knowles
Alderman Ian Luder
Vivienne Littlechild
Helen Marshall
Deputy Joyce Nash
Don Randall
Deputy Richard Regan

Officers:

Alex Orme Xanthe Couture Nagina Kayani

Suzanne Jones Chris Anderson Graham Bell Steve Presland Peter Treadgold

- Town Clerk's DepartmentTown Clerk's Department
- Equalities, Diversity and Human Rights Manager
- Chamberlain's DepartmentChief Technology OfficerChief Information Officer
- Department of the Built Environment Department of the Built Environment

City of London Police:

lan Dyson Wayne Chance Eric Nisbett Hayley Williams Rhys Lovegrove Richard Woolford

- Assistant CommissionerCommander OperationsDirector of Corporate Services
- Chief of Staff
- Corporate Programme Office
- Chief Superintendent, Uniform Police Directorate

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from the Deputy Chairman, the Commissioner of Police and the Commander of Economic Crime.

The Chairman welcomed the new Chief Superintendent of the Uniform Police Directorate, Richard Woolford.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES

3.a) The public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 17 January 2014 were approved as a correct record.

Matters Arising

Item 7 - Police Innovation Fund

The Commander of Operations updated Members that the Police would be attending a meeting with the Home Office to help improve their bid in the future.

Lift at Bishopsgate Police Station

A Member updated the Committee that work on the elevator repairs were underway and was hoped be completed in the next several weeks.

3.a) The public minutes and summary of the Professional Standards and Integrity Sub (Police) Committee meeting held on 7th February 2014 were received, subject to an amendment of the apologies.

4. OUTSTANDING REFERENCES

Police Committee Workshops

The Chairman updated Members on upcoming Member workshops which included Action Fraud and the upcoming Police budget. The Town Clerk would send details to Members when they were confirmed.

5. STANDARD ITEM ON THE SPECIAL INTEREST AREA SCHEME

5.a) Community Engagement Update

The Committee received a report of the Commissioner of Police which updated Members on recent community engagement activities, community priorities and forthcoming events.

The Chairman queried the success of Operation Fennel and the Commander of Operations informed Members that the Police were patrolling continuously and sign posting individuals who required support. A Member suggested that a good idea for a Member workshop may be a topic on rough sleeping.

Members discussed the Business engagement team survey and stated that it was important the topics covered in the survey did not lead the public to think there were issues arising with management of Police priorities.

RESOLVED – That the report be received and its contents noted.

5.b) Equality Diversity and Human Rights (EDHR) Update

The Committee received a verbal update from the Equalities, Diversity and Human Rights Manager, who advised that recruitment was underway for the Independent Advisory Group and would be advertised for a six week period. A further report back would be provided at the next meeting.

A meeting had taken place on the Stonewall Equality Index and Police benchmarking, and it was stated the activities the Police needed to undertake to meet these measures were of very little cost.

In response to a query from a Member on the costs associated with the Force implementing Stonewall Equality Index and the risk of tradeoffs needing to be made, the Assistant Commissioner clarified that costs would be discussed internally and reported back to Members at the April Committee.

RESOLVED – That the report be received and its contents noted.

5.c) Any Other Special Interest Area Updates

There were no updates.

6. BUDGET MONITORING REPORT TO END OF JANUARY 2014

The Committee received a report of the Commissioner of Police which updated Members on the financial position of the Force to the end of January 2014.

Members raised concern over the fact that details of two Capital Programme funding initiatives -Intellectual Property Unit and Dedicated Cheque and Plastic Card Unit (page 24) had not been listed, the Director of Corporate Services undertook to liaise with the Town Clerk to circulate the details. The Assistant Commissioner stated that the reporting system for the Capital Programme had improved and going forward, there would be methods by which to monitor programme slippage. He added that the Athena Project had fallen behind timelines on a national scale, which the Force was subject to.

A Member also suggested that going forward, future budget monitoring reports include further detail of the nature of other expenses, such as non-payroll stationary.

The Chamberlain also stated that they were meeting with the Police on Budget Monitoring and were reassured by the progress being made.

RESOLVED – That the report be received and its contents noted.

7. POLICE DESKTOP UPGRADE (TO FOLLOW)

The Committee considered a report of the Commissioner of Police which asked Members to approve the Computer Estate Model detailed within the report, and

endorse the request for additional funding to enable the implementation of the optimum catalogue of devices across the City of London Police (CoLP).

At the request of the Committee, this report was moved to the public section of the meeting.

The Director of Corporate Services informed Members that the computer estate model was influenced by the Force's City Futures Initiative and the Accommodation project which both sought to improve the Force's IT structure and enhance digitisation. Part of this process required examining and improving upon the Force's existing ways of working and liaising with the Corporation to align network technology to enhance Force network access. Members were advised at the next meeting of the Committee, a further program of works would be presented.

The Director of Corporate Services advised that there was an error listed in the Computer Rationalisation Model (page 9), and the costs for screens and docking stations could be removed, which lowered the total cost over three years to £419,000.

The Chief Information Officer informed Members the Chamberlain's Department had engaged in robust discussions with the Police, to ensure Force IT provisions were aligned with Corporation IT where possible. The Chief Technology Officer added that the mix of devices the Force had originally requested, as part of the Gateway 4 report, had since been amended. Officers highlighted that a mixture of mobile devices and increased in scope was required, and the report included the purchase costs for tablet devices and laptop computers as opposed to fixed desktop computers.

Members expressed their concern that devices for mobile working were costly and not necessarily required, and also that placing large orders of devices such as tablets should lower the per item cost. The Chief Technology Officer replied that set office space was not required, which lowered the overall office space required, and in many instances across the Force and given the nature of roles, many required their own individual devices which permitted remote working.

A Member expressed concern over the security of mobile IT devices, and the fact that they could be left in unsecure locations. The Chief Technology Officer reassured Members that due to the Force's IT security systems and the nature of levels of information security, it could be the case that some restricted information would not be accessible from certain mobile devices and that information security had been considered at the highest level and factored in as a key consideration.

RESOLVED – That,

- a) the computer estate model outlined in the report be approved as follows
 - i. the computer estate be reduced from 1600 to approximately 1200 by April 2013, and approximately 900 by the end of 2014 to coincide with the CoLP Mobile Data Project;

- ii. 450 tablet devices be purchased for front line police officers, to provide mobile devices for operation policing requirements working within a mobile environment; and
- b) the request for additional funding of £558,500 to enable implementation of the optimum catalogue of devices across the CoLP be approved.

8. ROAD DANGER REDUCTION UPDATE

The Committee received a joint report of the Director of Built Environment and the Commissioner of Police which updated Members on the twice-yearly progress report in relation to the City's Road Danger Reduction Plan (RDR Plan).

The Chairman remarked that he was happy with this report, which presented the joined up working the Corporation and the Police were undertaking with regard to road safety.

The Commander of Operations stated that the number of total accidents had decreased by 15%. The 20 mile per hour would be agreed by Planning and Transportation and would be effective from the 20th July 2014.

Members and officers discussed the provisions for two way cycle roads and it was stated that at the time Upper and Lower Thames Street would be included on a temporary basis and would be agreed on a permanent basis in the future. A Member stated that it was important that cycle lanes be well signed with white lines painted to assist cyclists and traffic flow. The Transportation & Public Realm Director of Built Environment stated that cycle lanes were well sign posted and there were efforts to channel cyclists on to less busy roads within the City. The Chairman remarked that the City's Safer City Partnership was also doing work in the area of road safety.

RESOLVED – That the report be received and its contents noted.

9. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE - SCHEME OF DELEGATIONS AND STANDING ORDERS

The Committee considered a report of the Town Clerk which set out the Scheme of Delegation to the relevant Chief Officer relevant to this Committee, in this case the Commissioner of the City of London Police.

Members discussed the details of the Scheme of Delegation, and it was agreed that a minor amendment was required to state delegations to officers were within agreed budgets, and further specification was sought on whether the delegations relating to human resources were within the remit of the City of London Corporation or the Police.

RESOLVED – That,

 a) subject to the approval of the Policy and Resources Committee of the overall Scheme of Delegation, the delegations relating to the Commissioner of Police Head be approved; and b) the proposed amendment to Standing Orders relating to the declaration of operation property assets which are surplus to requirements be noted.

10. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

Questions were raised as follows -

<u>Barbican Highwalk CCTV</u> – a Member queried into the status of CCTV at the Barbican Highwalk, due to concerns around security. Members of the Police Committee, who were also Members of the Barbican Residents Association, stated given the security risks and need to ensure safety they were supportive of this measure.

Members discussed the possibility of a survey to canvas Barbican residents on introducing CCTV on the Barbican Highwalk, but there were concerns raised that from past experience, response rate could be low and it was important that measures be taken to ensure security and safety of residents and the public.

Members agreed to note their support measures for CCTV installation on the Barbican Highwalk and the Town Clerk undertook to explore the possible options for the installation of CCTV on the Barbican Highwalk and provide an update at the next meeting.

<u>Passes for external Members</u> – A Member requested the Town Clerk address the lack of City of London passes for external Members of the Committee.

<u>Economic Crime Member's Briefing</u> – the Chairman of Policy and Resources, who was also a Member of the Committee, updated Members on the successful Member's Briefing held on the Police's role as lead force for economic crime, which enhanced their knowledge and detail of the Force's work in this area.

<u>Police Road Closures</u> - Members raised the recent Police closures with the Police with regard to how decisions were taken in implementing road closures and deciding the area affected, given the recent closure at Bishopsgate due to the investigation of a crime scene. Members raised concerns over the cost implications of these closures and the need to ensure wherever possible closures could be minimised, such as the timing of Old Bailey sentencing in instances of high profile trials.

A Member updated the Committee that they had been in discussion with the Commander of Operations on the communication of the road closure with the business community, and would be liaising in the future to ensure good communication to reach all businesses affected by road closures was undertaken.

The Assistant Commissioner informed Members that due to the fluid nature of the crime scene, investigation had been ongoing and had required the whole area to be secure. The Assistant Commissioner would take on board the concerns of Members for debrief within the Force.

The Chairman also raised that road closures had been in effect during a trial recently at the Old Bailey and a Member added that the risk of public disruption could have been minimised if the sentencing had occurred at a different time of day. The Assistant Commissioner advised that due to a particular set of conditions, including many groups assembling outside the Old Bailey meant that it was a unique situation which had required extra security measures. It was agreed it would useful for the Town Clerk to liaise with the Secondary with regards to future court dates.

<u>Barbican event cancellation –</u> a Member raised the recent decision and communications around the cancellation of an event that had been scheduled to take place at the Barbican Centre, and the Chairman of Policy and Resources advised that the Chairman of the Police Committee and the Chairman of the Barbican Centre Board would be speaking to ensure this situation did not occur in the future. It was noted that the Town Clerk would undertake a review to ensure that lessons were learned.

11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

The following items of urgent business were raised –

Project Servator

The Commander of Operations provided an update to Members, upon the request of the Chairman, which updated Members of Project Servator which involved specially training officers and improved methods of policing the City' entry points. There had been many stops within the first week of operations, with an overwhelming positive response from the community and the involvement of City businesses.

A Member queried if Project Servator would reduce stop and search procedures, to which the Commander of Operations explained that the Police were subject to regular inspections and reports by the HMIC and College of Policing and was in good standing.

Force Accommodation Project

The Chamberlain updated Members that the Force would be moving into Guildhall Yard East in late 2014 and the Chamberlain and City Surveyor would be briefing to the Police Committee lead Member, and the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Police Committee, Finance Committee and Projects Sub Committee on the progress being made. Issues were being closely examined, such as the location of custody suites and the firing range, and were not affecting costs of the project.

A written report would be received at the next meeting of the Police Committee.

12. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Item No.	Exempt Paragraphs
12a)	3
12b)	1, 2 & 5
13	3
14	7
16	3
17	3
18	3 & 7

13. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

- 13.a) The non-public minutes of the meeting held 17 January 2014 were approved as a correct record.
- 13.b) The non-public minutes of the Professional Standards and Integrity Sub (Police) Committee held on 7 February 2014 were received, subject to the following amendments as follows -
 - Item 9.a) Statistical Information, to revise the section under Action Fraud to state a meeting had been postponed by the IPCC; and
 - Item Any Other Business, to revise that IPCC funding was being re-allocated from the Home Office.

14. ACTION FRAUD SERVICE TRANSFER FROM THE NATIONAL FRAUD AUTHORITY TO THE CITY OF LONDON POLICE

The Committee considered a report of the Commissioner of Police that updated Members on the transfer of the Action Fraud service from the National Fraud Authority to the City of London Police.

15. CITY OF LONDON POLICE ENGAGEMENT WITH US AGENCIES

The Committee received a report from the Commissioner of Police which summarised a recent trip to the United States taken by the Commissioner and the Commander of Economic Crime.

16. DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER URGENCY PROCEDURES

The Committee received a report of action taken by the Town Clerk in consultation with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman since the last meeting of the Committee.

17. QUARTERLY ECONOMIC CRIME UPDATE

The Committee received a quarterly report of the Commander of Economic Crime which updated Members on economic crime matters.

The Assistant Commissioner provided the report update on behalf of the Commander of Economic Crime.

18. **COMMISSIONER'S UPDATES**

The Assistant Commissioner of Police was heard concerning on-going and successful operations undertaken by the City of London Police.

19. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no questions.

20. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There were no items or urgent business.

The meeting ended at 12.51 pm	
 Chairman	

Contact Officer: Xanthe Couture

tel. no.: 020 7332 3113

xanthe.couture@cityoflondon.gov.uk